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Bidding in good faith – Draft Determination 

The Energy Supply Association of Australia (esaa) welcomes the opportunity to 

make a submission to the Australian Energy Market Commission (AEMC) on the 

Bidding in good faith rule change.    

The esaa is the peak industry body for the stationary energy sector in Australia and 

represents the policy positions of the Chief Executives of 37 electricity and 

downstream natural gas businesses. These businesses own and operate some 

$120 billion in assets, employ more than 59,000 people and contribute $24.1 billion 

directly to the nation’s Gross Domestic Product. 

As has consistently been affirmed by all parties, volatility in the spot price is an 

inherent and necessary feature of a market with the characteristics of the National 

Electricity Market (NEM). Flexibility is essential for maintaining a reliable system 

given the range of factors that impact on the dynamics of both demand and supply of 

electricity. As the AEMC has noted in the course of assessing this rule change, “an 

efficient functioning market need not provide an efficient price outcome in each and 

every dispatch interval. The iterative process of price discovery involves a dynamic 

process of participants learning and reacting to their competitors’ action.” 

The AEMC is of the view that some of the current volatility is due to late strategic 

rebidding. Work commissioned by the AEMC indicates that “since 2007 the 

occurrence of late rebidding, and timing of rebids towards the end of trading intervals, 

has been a recent phenomenon, occurring within the last two years and 

predominantly in Queensland and to some extent in South Australia.”  

Analysis undertaken by the Australian Energy Market Operator (AEMO), where the 

actual data from the last two dispatch internals (DIs) was replaced with the average 

of the first four DIs, suggested that late rebidding can both raise and lower the price. 

But in no region was there a significant divergence. 
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AEMO analysis - impacts on annual average prices due to late rebids by year and 

region ($/MWh)   

 

Based on the information provided it is still not clear that late rebidding presents a 

material problem to the NEM, given that restricting bidding in a competitive market is 

not costless but undermines market efficiency in its own way. While the AEMC 

believes there is a problem, they do not consider that the rules are an effective 

means to compensate for factors outside of the rules, such as a non-competitive 

industry structure.  As such, the AEMC has focused on giving effect to the original 

intent of the good faith provision, rather than wholesale changes to the market rules.  

Essentially the type of behaviour the AEMC is seeking to prevent is deliberate late 

rebidding, with the intention to deny other market participants the ability to respond. 

The AEMC is of the view  “deliberately delaying making such a rebid until close to 

dispatch, in order to limit the opportunity for potential responses from other 

participants, is not clearly counter to the existing rules.” The esaa agrees with the 

Commission that deliberately withholding a rebid is not desirable behaviour and 

should be prevented.   

While the AEMC has proposed a number of changes to the rules to achieve this end, 

the key difference between the existing and proposed rule is the prohibition on 

delayed rebidding (sub-section 3.8.22A(d)). This provision requires a generator to 

make a rebid:  

as soon as reasonably practicable after the Scheduled Generator, Semi-Scheduled 

Generator or Market Participant becomes aware of the change in material conditions 

and circumstances on the basis of which it decides to vary its dispatch offer or 

dispatch bid. 

The current provisions only require a generator to act in good faith at the time of 

making a bid/rebid. Sub-section (d) now places an obligation on a generator to 

change their bid “as soon as reasonably practicable” once they have decided a rebid 

is necessary. This would ensure a generator’s bids are a true representation of their 

intentions.  

As the AEMC wants to prevent strategic rebidding that is undertaken with the intent 

to prevent other generators responding, it is at one level understandable why the 

Commission has proposed sub-section 3.8.22A(e), in addition to sub-section (d). 

That said, we would argue that not only is sub-section (e) superfluous once a 

generator has an obligation under sub-section (d) to rebid as soon as possible, it 

runs the risk of creating a conflicting obligation.  

Sub-section (e) requires the court to take account of one of the market design 

principles and whether other generators were able to respond to a rebid, when 
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assessing the behaviour of a generator. Sub-section (d) frames a generator’s 

obligation internally, to act once they have formed a judgement. This approach 

requires the generator to act on information completely within its control. Sub-section 

(e) is framed with reference to other market participants. Leaving aside our previous 

concerns of how one would define who should be allowed to respond, it is not clear 

how a generator should respond if they have formed a view a rebid is necessary, but 

one or more market participants would not be able to respond if a rebid was lodged. 

We also question the benefit of cross referencing a single market design principle.  

The esaa does not support any additional reporting requirements. At no point in this 

process has it been demonstrated that information collection provisions were an 

issue. The Australian Energy Regulator already has extensive information collection 

powers, as such it is not clear there are any benefits from an additional reporting 

requirement, but there will be additional costs.  

The esaa finds it worrying that the Commission suggested one of the rationales for 

the new reporting requirement is to “require the generator to consider the trade-off 

between the necessity of the rebid and the requirement to provide a report”. Using 

administrative costs to dissuade a generator from rebidding is not only poor policy, it 

is unlikely to dissuade the targeted behaviour. Increasing administrative costs may 

stop a generator rebidding incremental changes, reducing efficiency, but is unlikely to 

deter actions with malicious intent.       

Based on the arguments above, we have set out some proposed changes to the draft 

rule in Attachment A. 

Any questions about our submission should be addressed to Fergus Pope, by email 

to fergus.pope@esaa.com.au or by telephone on (03) 9205 3107.   

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 
Kieran Donoghue  

General Manager Policy 
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